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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Good

          3  afternoon, everybody. Welcome to the Subcommittee on

          4  Planning, Dispositions and Concessions, a

          5  subcommittee of the Land Use Committee of the New

          6  York City Council.  Today's date is Monday, August

          7  20th.  My name is Dan Garodnick.  I'm the Chair of

          8  the Subcommittee.  We're joined today by Committee

          9  Members Vincent Ignizio of Staten Island, Inez

         10  Dickens of Manhattan, Sara Gonzalez of Brooklyn and

         11  David Yassky of Brooklyn.

         12                 We have a number of items on the

         13  agenda today.  We are going to move through them

         14  expeditiously, but first we will open the hearing on

         15  Land Use Nos. 418 and 419.  They're related items.

         16  While I'm briefly giving the numbers on this, I'd

         17  like to invite Muzzy Rosenblatt of the Bowery

         18  Residents' Committee and also HPD up to the witness

         19  table.

         20                 This is the Liberty Avenue C 070312

         21  ZSK, Brooklyn Community Board 5 and also C 070313

         22  HAK, also in Brooklyn Community Board 5.  Mr.

         23  Rosenblatt, why don't we start with you, and you can

         24  introduce this item.  I know this is a joint

         25  application between you and HPD, so just introduce
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          2  yourself and go right ahead.

          3                 MR. ROSENBLATT:  Good morning,

          4  members.  My name is Muzzy Rosenblatt.  I'm the

          5  Executive Director of BRC, the Bowery Residents'

          6  Committee.  Thank you for allowing me to testify

          7  this morning on behalf of our Liberty Avenue

          8  supportive housing project.

          9                 BRC is a non-profit organization

         10  that's been working in New York City for the past 35

         11  years.  Our mission is to help people reclaim lives

         12  lost.  Every eight minutes one of our outreach

         13  workers is on the streets or in the subways in New

         14  York City starting a conversation with a homeless

         15  person helping them to take a step in the right

         16  direction to begin to change their lives and

         17  accomplish the things and realize their potential.

         18                 Every three hours somebody walks

         19  through the doors of one of our programs and

         20  actually begins the process of life transformation.

         21  Every six hours somebody completes their program

         22  successfully.  More than once every day, 503 times

         23  last year, someone from BRC moved into housing, and

         24  over 250 times somebody found a job.

         25                 We house over 800 people on any given
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          2  night in a variety of housing facilities throughout

          3  New York City, transitional and permanent housing.

          4  We've developed eight projects in the past 16 years,

          5  and Liberty Avenue would the ninth.  We have nearly

          6  200 units in Brooklyn, and, in fact, this would be

          7  our second development in Community Board 5 in

          8  Brooklyn where we've successfully operated the

          9  Fulton House facility on Alabama and Fulton since

         10  the early 1990's.

         11                 We are proposing today to build on a

         12  vacant lot. We've been designated by HPD to be the

         13  developer of a supportive housing project that would

         14  serve both single adults and families. It would be a

         15  total 47 units in a three- story building, 31 single

         16  units, studio apartments and 16 mix of eight one-

         17  bedroom and eight two- bedroom apartments for

         18  families, and one of those two- bedroom apartments

         19  would be for a live- in super.

         20                 The architect on the project is an

         21  architect we've worked with before, Cindy Harden of

         22  Harden Van Arnam, who's designed some wonderful,

         23  beautiful, contextfully appropriate and award-

         24  winning projects, including our Glass Factory

         25  residence, which is another permanent housing
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          2  residence like Liberty Avenue on Avenue D between

          3  9th and 10th Street here in Manhattan.  There's a

          4  reference to it in the packet that I've distributed,

          5  as well as more details on the project.

          6                 The population that we're going to

          7  seek to house in this building will be low income

          8  individuals, again singles and families, some

          9  graduates of the City shelter system, others from

         10  the community.  Our preference for all the units

         11  will be to individuals who are currently living in

         12  shelters or currently living in Community Boards 4

         13  and 5 in Brooklyn, or have a history of living in

         14  Community Boards 4 and 5 in Brooklyn.

         15                 That pretty much is the project.  I'm

         16  happy to answer questions you have about it.  I do

         17  want to acknowledge and appreciate the particular

         18  efforts that we've benefited from Council Member

         19  Dilan, as well as Borough President Markowitz, who

         20  have helped really create I think a wonderful

         21  project here, and we're very looking forward to

         22  developing this facility and continuing to create

         23  more low income affordable rental housing in New

         24  York City.  Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you,
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          2  Mr. Rosenblatt. Let me just see if Ms. Clark of HPD

          3  has anything to add before we go to any questions

          4  that might be out there.  Ms. Clark.

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  Yes.

          6  I'm Carol Clark.  I'm the Assistant Commissioner at

          7  HPD, and I'm joined by Jessica Katz (phonetic),

          8  who's the Director of Housing Development for HPD's

          9  Special Needs Housing.

         10                 As you know, LU418 is an application

         11  for a special permit pursuant to Section 74902 of

         12  the Zoning Resolution, and this permits the

         13  allowable community facility floor area to apply to

         14  the development of the proposed building.

         15                 LU419 pertains to the disposition of

         16  the 11 vacant city- owned lots for this project.

         17  We're happy to take questions.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Ms. Clark,

         19  just explain. You said there were 11 vacant lots, is

         20  that right?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  That's

         22  correct.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Are they all

         24  together?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:
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          2  They're all city- owned lots, and they are

          3  contiguous.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Contiguous, I

          5  guess is really what I was asking.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Okay, thank

          8  you.

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  That's

         10  correct.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  The process

         12  for selecting Bowery Residents' Committee, can you

         13  articulate that?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:

         15  Jessica Katz will answer that question.

         16                 MS. KATZ:  Thank you.  The Supportive

         17  Housing Loan Program does intend to do RPF's for the

         18  sites because the kind of work that we do is so

         19  specific, so when we had a site that was

         20  available for supportive housing, the BRC was really

         21  the only group who has a history of working in

         22  Community Board 5, so we designated them to develop

         23  the property.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Just so I

         25  understand. Ordinarily, there is a process where
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          2  there's a competitive process of various people

          3  expressing interest.  In this situation is the

          4  Bowery Residents' Committee truly the only entity

          5  that can do this work?  This is a sincere question

          6  of not knowing the answer to that.

          7                 MS. KATZ:  It's not.  There's a

          8  variety of groups that we work with in the

          9  Supportive Housing Program, but we also require our

         10  sponsors to get community support, and in this case

         11  you actually have to go through ULURP, so we're

         12  looking for a group that has a history of working in

         13  that community board.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  What is the

         15  standard then by which HPD needs to go through an

         16  open and competitive process versus the situation

         17  where you don't?

         18                 MS. KATZ:  In the supportive housing

         19  loan program we don't have, typically we don't have

         20  city- owned property, so sponsors come to us with

         21  the project.  So we review proposals as they come in

         22  to us.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Okay, but in

         24  a situation where there is city- owned property,

         25  what it is about the supportive housing context
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          2  which exempts the City from going through its

          3  ordinary procedures?

          4                 MS. KATZ:  The public procedure goes

          5  through on the social services side, so BRC has to

          6  go through a competitive process to get qualified to

          7  provide the social services.  Once they've done

          8  that, if there's a site that's appropriate, we can

          9  sole source it to a specific group.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Can you

         11  explain then the social service competitive process

         12  side?

         13                 MS. KATZ:  Sure.  There's the New

         14  York/New York3 agreement, which is an agreement

         15  between the Mayor and the Governor's Office to do

         16  9,000 units of supportive housing in the City of New

         17  York in the next 10 years.  There's an RFP process

         18  through the Department of Health and then another

         19  one through the HIV/AIDS Services Administration.

         20  So in this case there will be a New York/New York3

         21  contract for the site, and BRC has also gotten a

         22  contract from HUD through their supportive housing

         23  program for about a million dollars of federal

         24  funding for this, so that was one of the other

         25  reasons why we designated them for the site, because
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          2  they were giving a million dollars.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  I see.  So

          4  the Department of Health has an open process, which

          5  BRC qualified for, and I suppose was the winning

          6  applicant in that process, is that right first?

          7                 MS. KATZ:  There's 9,000 units, so

          8  everyone has to qualify under that, and then there's

          9  also in this case it was a little bit unusual.  They

         10  also had a million dollars in federal social service

         11  funding, so we needed to find a site so that we

         12  could apply that for.

         13                 MR. ROSENBLATT:  I think what was

         14  unique about our situation here was that we had this

         15  million dollar grant that initially had been given

         16  to us for another site from the federal government

         17  from HUD, so we were actively looking for another

         18  opportunity to develop the same kind of project.  We

         19  were in conversations with HPD.  They knew we had

         20  the grant.  They knew we had lost the other site,

         21  which was a private that we had.

         22                 So in the interest of keeping that

         23  million dollars in New York City and not having it

         24  go back to Washington, which we obtained through a

         25  competitive process for this purpose, and given our
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          2  experience in working in Community Board 5 to

          3  develop supportive housing, there were other people

          4  developing other types of housing in Community Board

          5  5, but in terms of the supportive housing program at

          6  HPD, one of many programs at HPD, it just seemed

          7  like the perfect, all the different kind of things

          8  dovetailing together at the same time in terms of a

          9  site being available, us being able to take on a new

         10  project, having just finished a project, having the

         11  HUD grant available, not losing it, and having the

         12  type of housing that HPD wanted to develop.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Let me just

         14  say off the bat, I completely appreciate the

         15  rationale as to why we wouldn't want to give a

         16  million dollars back to the federal government and

         17  make sure it stays in supportive housing here.  I

         18  also understand the 9,000 unit goal to do that.

         19  What I'm really just trying to understand

         20  specifically is the processes that were undertaken

         21  here to bring us to this day.  You said there was a

         22  competitive application process for HUD.

         23                 MR. ROSENBLATT:  Correct.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  By which you

         25  secured a million dollars of funding, which was
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          2  supposed to initially go for another project, but I

          3  suppose that HUD allows you to transfer it from one

          4  to another.

          5                 MR. ROSENBLATT:  You have to ask, and

          6  we've asked and we've gotten that permission.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Okay, so then

          8  from the City perspective you said, okay, well, we

          9  come to the table with a million dollar grant from

         10  the federal government, and we know that there are

         11  needs in the City to do this sort of housing work.

         12  Was there an initial request for proposals from

         13  various entities that you responded to, or did you

         14  come to the City and say, okay, here we are, we're

         15  prepared to do this, and we have money to do this

         16  and let's move forward from here?

         17                 MR. ROSENBLATT:  We knew the City was

         18  looking to do more work.  We came forward, as you

         19  appropriately described pretty much in that way,

         20  saying we have this situation, we have this money,

         21  we're prepared to do this, we'd like the opportunity

         22  to do this.  Obviously, I can't speak to the

         23  conversations or discussions or decisions that were

         24  made within HPD, but I wanted you to understand the

         25  perspective from where we were coming from, and BRC
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          2  as an affordable housing developer with this grant

          3  and the desire to build this housing and our

          4  approach to HPD.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Before I go

          6  to any further question myself, Council Member

          7  Ignizio has questions.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER IGNIZIO:  Thank you

          9  very much.  I similarly want to dovetail on the

         10  comments made by the esteemed Chairman here today.

         11  I believe that ultimately we ought step away from

         12  comments like sole sourcing and move towards more of

         13  an RFP process in the processes that HPD is

         14  utilizing, and believe that this committee and the

         15  Land Use Committee as a whole ought take up the

         16  processes by which sole source leasing is giving out

         17  in the City of New York with affordable housing.

         18                 That being said, the comments that

         19  were used in testimony here was that because of work

         20  within the community and because of access to

         21  community organizations was part of the reason why

         22  you were selected, and yet anyone that represents

         23  anybody in this community has been opposed, the

         24  Community Board 390 and the Borough President.  Can

         25  you articulate why and how the community board was
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          2  so opposed to this application, and where are they

          3  today?

          4                 MR. ROSENBLATT:  That was the initial

          5  position in the community when we got that

          6  opposition, which surprised us a little bit.  We

          7  began conversations with Councilman Dilan.  We've

          8  had those conversations.  We have his support for

          9  this project.  We also have, and there's a letter in

         10  your packet from Borough President Markowitz, that

         11  also shows his support.

         12                 The basic area of concern that was

         13  articulated to us and that we had responded to in

         14  the revisions, and so in the original ULURP

         15  application it speaks to 63 studio apartments and

         16  one two- bedroom for the live- in super.  It's now

         17  31 studios with 16 family units, one and two-

         18  bedroom apartments.  So through Councilman Dilan's

         19  efforts, we were able to bring that together, and I

         20  believe successfully address the concerns of many in

         21  the community, especially Councilman Dilan.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER IGNIZIO:  So it's fair

         23  to say that subsequent to those comments, there was

         24  a change in the overall planning, and seemingly

         25  there is more, because the elected official is
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          2  supportive, seemingly there is more support within

          3  that community as a whole, would you acknowledge

          4  that?

          5                 MR. ROSENBLATT:  That is correct.

          6  And there's always been support, as far as I'm

          7  aware.  I've been with the organization as the

          8  Executive Director for the past seven years, for us

          9  an organization.  There was some concern about the

         10  project and the project composition and the types of

         11  housing units that were going to be developed, as I

         12  said.  We've been operating on Fulton and Alabama

         13  for 15 years.  We've had wonderful community

         14  support, wonderful community relations.  As well,

         15  you'll see in the packet a letter from the Cypress

         16  Hills Local Development Corporation, another local

         17  organization in the East New York area, who also has

         18  articulated their support for our work.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER IGNIZIO:  Okay, thank

         20  you very much, Please let me be clear to the

         21  Chairman of this Committee and in the testimony

         22  which is recorded, I am not accusing or questioning

         23  any nefarious motives on behalf of anyone in HPD.  I

         24  just simply believe our RFP process to dispel the

         25  potential thought that anything like that is going
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          2  on, and when everything is out in the open in

          3  government, we're all better off.  Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Council

          5  Member Ignizio, I just wanted to echo that

          6  sentiment.  I think that's precisely where I was

          7  going.  It's not really to question the specifics

          8  about the merits of the proposal here, and it sounds

          9  like there were questions initially, and those were

         10  responded to, but I agree with Council Member

         11  Ignizio about openness and process and making sure

         12  that nobody can even ask any question about

         13  legitimacy of any applications.  Ms. Clark?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  I just

         15  want assure the Council Members that we will take

         16  this back to the office and have it discussed

         17  further.  Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you.

         19  Ultimately, the Borough President did indicate his

         20  support for this application, is that correct?

         21                 MR. ROSENBLATT:  That's correct, and

         22  there's a letter to that effect in the packet.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you.

         24  Council Member Dickens?

         25                 MR. ROSENBLATT:  In the folders I
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          2  gave you today.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Council

          5  Member Dilan supported it?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  According to

          7  Ms. Clark, Council Member Dilan indicates his

          8  support for this project, is that correct, Ms.

          9  Clark?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  That

         11  is correct.  Council Member Dilan is in support of

         12  this project.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Questions?

         14  Okay, seeing none, we will close the hearing on Land

         15  Use Numbers 418 and 419, the related items on

         16  Liberty Avenue.

         17                 We are going to open the hearing on

         18  our next item on today's agenda, which is Land Use

         19  No. 516, which is an item in the district of Council

         20  Member David Yassky involving Thomas Street.

         21                 Mr. Moskowitz, whenever you are

         22  ready, come on up. This is Land Use 516 C 030429

         23  MMK.  This is an action involving an elimination and

         24  discontinuance and closing of a portion of Thomas

         25  Street in Brooklyn.  Mr. Moskowitz, whenever you're
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          2  ready.

          3                 MR. MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you, Council

          4  Member Garodnick. Good afternoon, Council Members.

          5  My name is Ross Moskowitz.  I'm a member of the law

          6  firm Stroock, Stroock and Lavan.  We are counsel to

          7  JP Realty and Emil Realty, co- applicants in the

          8  application before you today.

          9                 The applicants are seeking approval

         10  for the amendment to the City map involving the

         11  elimination, discontinuance and closing of a portion

         12  of Thomas Street between Stewart Avenue and Gardner

         13  Avenue and the acquisition of those properties.

         14                 For the Council Members, Thomas

         15  Street is a three block street running from Varick

         16  to Newtown Creek, parallel to Meeker Avenue and

         17  Cherry Street.  The application herein concerns the

         18  block of Thomas Street that has been closed to the

         19  public and vehicular traffic since we believe the

         20  early 1930's.  It's what we would call in the

         21  business a paper street.  The site is located within

         22  an M31 zoning district and is approximately 800 feet

         23  from the adjacent R6 zoning district.

         24                 The applicants have leased this block

         25  of Thomas Street from the City for approximately 15
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          2  years and now wish to purchase it outright.  As the

          3  Council Members know, the City through DCAS can

          4  revoke the leases upon 24 hours' notice, and given

          5  this uncertainty, the applicants decided to pursue

          6  this application and, in fact, have obtained a

          7  waiver from the adjacent property owner, the only

          8  property directly impacted by this application that

          9  allowed it to proceed.

         10                 The application has received support

         11  from the local community board, that's Community

         12  Board 1, the Brooklyn Borough President's Office and

         13  other owners within the community, and as the

         14  Council Members know, the Planning Commissioner

         15  approved this proposal on July 11th.  Thank you for

         16  your time and consideration. I'd be happy to answer

         17  any questions.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you

         19  very much.  I'm going to turn to Council Member

         20  Yassky.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Thank you,

         22  Chair Garodnick. I support this application, and I

         23  just wanted to put that here on the record.  I don't

         24  have any real questions for the applicant.  I

         25  understand what they will make more productive use
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          2  presumably then. The City agencies have no use for

          3  this site, and so therefore it makes sense in my

          4  view to put it into productive hands.

          5                 The one sliver of concern I want to

          6  put on the record is the state government believes

          7  that at some point they may be interested in using

          8  this particular site as an alternative route for

          9  traffic when the Kosciuszko Bridge is reconstructed.

         10  I don't think that's reason to hold up our process.

         11  I think we ought to go through and approve the

         12  remapping and then as the City agencies complete

         13  that process, they can confirm with the state one

         14  way or another, are you going to have a use or not.

         15  If it turns out that they do, then they'll

         16  presumably defer the remapping until that's done

         17  sometime in the 2030's, 2040's, but assuming that

         18  there is no need for that, then there's no reason

         19  not to go ahead with this, and I support the

         20  application.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you,

         22  Council Member Yassky.  Just to be clear, if at a

         23  later date, the State were to have use for the

         24  street and the City were to acknowledge that and to

         25  appreciate that the street would be useful for the
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          2  reconstruction of the Kosciuszko Bridge, then what

          3  is the action that the City would not do?  They

          4  would not file the demapping agreement, is that the

          5  specific process?

          6                 MR. MOSKOWITZ: Correct. [microphone

          7  turned off.]

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  There is no

          9  time frame by which the City has to file a demapping

         10  agreement, is there?

         11                 MR. MOSKOWITZ:  No, there is no time

         12  frame that I'm aware of. [microphone turned off.]

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you,

         14  Mr. Moskowitz.

         15                 Seeing no other members of the public

         16  wishing to testify on this item, we're going to

         17  close the hearing on Land Use No. 516, Thomas Street

         18  C 030429 MMK and open the hearing on Land Use No.

         19  528, which is P.S. 90.

         20                 I'm going to invite Ms. Clark back

         21  up.  This is N 070467 HAM.  This is to facilitate

         22  the development of a six-story mixed use building

         23  tentatively known as P.S. 90 with approximately 75

         24  residential units in a community facility space.

         25  Ms. Clark?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Right.

          3  LU No. 528. The designation of property located at

          4  217 West 147th Street. [microphone turned off]

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you.

          6  The condo units, the 75 condo units will be

          7  available to whom?

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:

          9  [microphone turned off.]

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you,

         11  and how was the developer, I guess it's 214 West

         12  147th Street Associates; is that the name of the

         13  developer here?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Yes.

         15  [microphone turned off.]

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  How were they

         17  selected?

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:

         19  [microphone turned off.]

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you.

         21  And you said Council Member Jackson is a supporter

         22  of this application?

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  That's

         24  correct.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you.
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          2                 We have testimony from a Mr. Hill.

          3                 MR. HILL: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Is that you,

          5  sir?

          6                 MR. HILL: Yes, it is.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Welcome.  If

          8  you could just go ahead and introduce yourself, and

          9  we'd love to hear from you.

         10                 MR. HILL: [microphone turned off]

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you

         12  very much.  Let me ask, this is a question for Ms.

         13  Clark.  In terms of the process by which this was

         14  engaged in as a development of housing, as opposed

         15  to a school, explain how the DOE was involved in

         16  this process.

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:

         18  [microphone turned off.]

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  How long was

         20  it in use as a school?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:

         22  [microphone turned off.]

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Okay, thank

         24  you.  Sir, do you know the answer to that?

         25                 MR. HILL:  No, I don't.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you.

          3                 Well, we appreciate your comments and

          4  your testimony.  There are others seeking to testify

          5  on this item, a K. Samuels.  As Ms. Samuels, as you

          6  set up, we're having a little problem with the

          7  audio.  You can hear all the feedback, so we're just

          8  going to take a very, very brief recess.  We're not

          9  even going to go anywhere.  We're going to stay

         10  right here while they fix the microphones, so we

         11  don't have this problem.  So just make yourself

         12  comfortable, and then we will get started again.

         13                 (Recess taken.)

         14                 (Witness microphone was turned on.)

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Okay, we're

         16  back.  We're out of our recess.  Ms. Samuels, thank

         17  you for your patience and to all the members of the

         18  Committee.  We are with working microphones now, so

         19  if you could just introduce yourself by pressing in

         20  the button. That's not a good sound.  Let's try the

         21  other one.  Let's see what happens.  You don't need

         22  to move.  We'll move it right over to you. We'll try

         23  that.  If you could just go ahead and introduce

         24  yourself and go right ahead.

         25                 MS. SAMUELS:  My name is K. Samuels,
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          2  and I am representing the Friends of Macooms, who is

          3  an organization in the community in North Harlem.

          4  I'm here today to talk about the P.S. 90 project.

          5                 The community requests that you lay

          6  over, delay or stop any City Council action on the

          7  P.S. 90 project proposed by HPD and the Harlem

          8  Congregation for Community Improvement, HCCI.

          9                 The process by which this project has

         10  arrived to this point has been replete with

         11  avoidance, misrepresentations, significant missing

         12  documentation and no meaningful engagement with the

         13  impacted community.

         14                 The community needs to have a serious

         15  conversation regarding the following:  The fact that

         16  the project was turned down by Community Board 10,

         17  the issue of asbestos contaminated material in the

         18  above noted building, information hiding by HPD,

         19  HCCI and the developer during the City Planning

         20  Commission hearing, inflation of the AMI by HCCI and

         21  the developers, the need for a new school in the

         22  neighborhood, the need for income targeted housing

         23  in the neighborhood, the fact that the neighborhood

         24  most impacted by this proposed development was not

         25  consulted.
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          2                 Community Board 10 is not community

          3  friendly. Therefore, when CB10 turns down a project,

          4  there must be something that is truly not right and

          5  is therefore significant.

          6                 Documentation requested by board

          7  members during the Land Use Committee meeting

          8  regarding the safe removal of materials toxic to the

          9  community was not provided at the general board

         10  meeting.  Minutes of the Land Use Committee meeting

         11  were not even provided to the Board members

         12  documenting this.  The lead developer did not show

         13  up at the general board meeting, and the

         14  representatives he sent did not speak to the issue.

         15                 By chance, Board members who were

         16  present at the Land Use Committee meeting spoke up

         17  and the project was rejected by the Board.  This

         18  building is a Brownfield.  Once the construction of

         19  this building starts, asbestos particles will become

         20  air borne and spread throughout the community.

         21  There has been no documentation provided by HCCI or

         22  the developer or HPD for that matter that the

         23  impacted neighborhood can study and/or evaluate to

         24  determine if the actions proposed and contracted for

         25  will protect the human health of the surrounding
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          2  community and prevent the spread of asbestos-

          3  containing material.

          4                 We need to know the preventive

          5  measures HCCI will use to stop this air borne

          6  contamination to our neighborhood prior to any

          7  approval of this project.

          8                 HPD, HCCI and the developer did not

          9  mention the fact that P.S. 90 is a Brownfield during

         10  the City Planning Commission hearing, and attempted

         11  to sidestep the fact that the project was turned

         12  down by CB10 primarily because of the asbestos issue

         13  and their lack of candor.  If community members did

         14  not testify the fact that the building was a

         15  Brownfield and contained asbestos, would not have

         16  been made public at the CPC hearings.

         17                 The manner in which HPD, HCCI and the

         18  developer attempted to avoid this issue will be

         19  present on the broadcast of the hearings on channel

         20  74 this Thursday.  You, as well as the community at

         21  large should be allowed to see this broadcast and

         22  make an assessment of their actions, prior to and

         23  not after, any further decisions about this

         24  property.

         25                 During the general board meeting when
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          2  HCCI presented the P.S. 90 project, it was pointed

          3  out that the AMI they used to set income limits was

          4  artificially high.  The AMI is now $56,800. The AMI

          5  that HCCI and the developers were using was $70,000.

          6    Many of the Community Board members expressed

          7  their surprise and annoyance with this money slight

          8  of hand.

          9                 There needs to be a serious

         10  conversation with the Board of Education.  We hope

         11  that our Council Member will spearhead this effort.

         12  Over the years, conditions have changed in the

         13  communities surrounding P.S. 90, which straddles

         14  West 147th and 148th Street between Adam Clayton and

         15  Powell, Jr. Boulevard and Frederick Douglas

         16  Boulevard.  There has been more and more

         17  development, albeit much of it too expensive for

         18  most of the surrounding community to move into.

         19                 This development was brought families

         20  with children into the neighborhood.  Where are

         21  these children to go to school? As the main

         22  participant in the fiscal equity lawsuit, we are

         23  hoping that Council Member Jackson, who knows that

         24  the classrooms are crowded in the community, will

         25  assist us in meeting with the Board of Ed. Because
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          2  the last letter that the Board of Ed. Produced was

          3  approximately four to five years ago.  That whole

          4  community demographics has changed since that time.

          5  Many more families have moved into the area, as I

          6  indicated, many of them with children. They have

          7  nowhere to go to school and definitely they have no

          8  high school to attend in that area.  The only high

          9  school there is a high school that is very selective

         10  about the students it takes, even though it takes

         11  students from all of New York City.  So that means

         12  our children have to go to the Bronx and everywhere

         13  else to get to high school.

         14                 A high school would be a benefit to

         15  the community. It is unclear why such valuable real

         16  estate is being given away for high end housing that

         17  will provide no benefit to the community. The

         18  children in this community must now travel to the

         19  Bronx and other locations in the City, as I

         20  indicated, to attend high school.

         21                 Even a new elementary school or even

         22  a junior high school would be more understandable

         23  than housing that does not benefit the community at

         24  the expense of the children.  We already had one

         25  project that the children lost out on.  We lost a
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          2  Boys and Girls Club and a new location for a

          3  library.  Now the library's going to be moved

          4  several blocks away, which means our children will

          5  have to cross large streets and it's closer.  It's

          6  eight blocks closer to County Cullin (phonetic) and

          7  another library up the street, so that neighborhood

          8  will be naked for a library.

          9                 There is a need for income targeted

         10  housing in Harlem.  This is documented by the

         11  National Low Income Housing Coalition, a document

         12  that I've attached, and indicates there is a housing

         13  deficit in Harlem for low income, very low income

         14  and extremely low income residents, not residents

         15  who can pay $2,000 and $3,000 a month rent.  In

         16  other words, the housing that is being built is not

         17  satisfying or closing this deficit.

         18                 The neighborhood most impacted by the

         19  proposed development was not consulted by HCCI and

         20  the developer or even Community Board 10.  This

         21  project was never brought up at the monthly HCCI

         22  community improvement meetings as well.  The

         23  community found out about the Land Use Committee

         24  meeting by chance.  There was no information about

         25  the agenda for the meeting until late afternoon the
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          2  day before.  Therefore, there was no time for the

          3  community to be informed properly about this issue

          4  and have any significant input.

          5                 In conclusion, elected officials are

          6  the ones who can work with the community and help

          7  the community obtain a better use for this property,

          8  a use that would benefit the community such as a

          9  school, nursing home or something else the community

         10  needs, not high end housing.

         11                 This would help the community protect

         12  itself and improve itself by actively engaging with

         13  the Council Member regarding this property.  The

         14  community also needs to know real documentation and

         15  after the ability to investigate the documentation

         16  how HCCI and the developers intend to protect the

         17  community against exposure to asbestos.  This should

         18  be done before this project goes any further in the

         19  City Council.  This property is still owned by the

         20  New York City Department of Housing and Preservation

         21  and could be sent back to the Department of

         22  Education since the demographics of the community

         23  has changed.

         24                 Please stop this project.  It does

         25  not benefit the community and will only impact the
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          2  neighborhood children negatively, and we already had

          3  one hit regarding that.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Ms. Samuels,

          5  we very much appreciate your testimony here, and I

          6  think we all heard you.  We appreciate your patience

          7  as well for waiting for our microphones to be

          8  working and thank you.

          9                 MS. SAMUELS:  No problem.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Seeing no

         11  other members of the public wishing to testify on

         12  this item, Land Use No. 528 P.S.90 N 070467 HAM,

         13  we'll close the hearing on that item and open the

         14  hearing on non- ULURP No. 2007 5384 HAQ, which is

         15  Land Use 443.

         16                 Ms. Clark, if you would like to come

         17  right back up. This is 107- 20 Guy R. Brewer

         18  Boulevard in Queens in the district of Council

         19  Member Tom White.  Ms. Clark, if you can introduce

         20  this item.

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  Sure.

         22  LU443 consists of the proposed disposition of one

         23  city- owned building with two residential units over

         24  ground floor commercial space.  It's located, as you

         25  noted, at 107- 20 Guy R. Brewer Boulevard and will
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          2  be developed through HPD's Storeworks Program.  The

          3  proposed sponsor, NHS Community Development

          4  Corporation, will rehabilitate the building and sell

          5  it to eligible purchasers.  Council Member White has

          6  reviewed the project and has indicated his support.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you.

          8  Can you just tell us how NHS was selected for this

          9  program?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  NHS

         11  was selected, this program, the Storeworks Program

         12  was established several years ago, and NHS

         13  specifically, because of their ability to educate

         14  and assist community members to purchase homes, was

         15  selected by HPD to do all of the Storeworks

         16  Projects.  This is the very end of Storeworks, as

         17  you know.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you.

         19  Seeing no other members of the public wishing to

         20  testify on this item, Land Use 443, we will close

         21  the hearing on that and open the hearing on Land Use

         22  No. 504 non- ULURP 2007 5581 HAM, three properties

         23  on West 149th Street in Manhattan in the district of

         24  Council Member Jackson.  Ms. Clark?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  Right.
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          2    LU504 consists of the proposed disposition of

          3  three occupied city- owned buildings located at 208,

          4  236- 38 and 252- 54 West 149th Street through HPD's

          5  neighborhood development program.  The non- profit

          6  sponsor, Harlem Congregation for Community

          7  Improvement, will rehabilitate these buildings to

          8  provide 69 units of low and moderate income rental

          9  housing plus one unit for a superintendent.  Council

         10  Member Jackson has reviewed the project and has

         11  indicated his support.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Do you want

         13  to anticipate my question?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  Now,

         15  what are the number of pre- rehab units?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Oh, that's

         17  good.  That would have been one of my questions too

         18  on another day, so go ahead and answer me that one.

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  All

         20  right.  It's 58 occupied and 45 vacant for a total

         21  of 103.  As you noted, as the post- rehab is 69

         22  units, so as we've discussed before, often when

         23  these buildings are rehabilitated with the Building

         24  Code and other requirements, there are fewer units

         25  than when they started out.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Good.  Thank

          3  you, and how was the Harlem Hunt Congregation, is

          4  that what you said?  The non profit developer?

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  Yes,

          6  that's correct.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  How were they

          8  selected?

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  They

         10  were selected through the neighborhood redevelopment

         11  program, and there was a competitive process

         12  involved here.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you.

         14  Seeing no other member of the public wishing to

         15  testify on this item, Land Use 504 2007 5581 HAM,

         16  we'll close the hearing on that item and open the

         17  hearing on Land Use 505 non- ULURP 2007 5582 HAM,

         18  three addresses in the district of Council Member

         19  Dickens, our own Inez Dickens.  So, Ms. Clark, if

         20  you can introduce this item, I'm sure Council Member

         21  Dickens will have something to say as well.

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  Yes,

         23  LU505 consists of the proposed disposition of three

         24  occupied city- owned buildings, the addresses of

         25  which you read into the record, through HPD's
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          2  neighborhood redevelopment program.  The non- profit

          3  sponsor, West Harlem Group Assistance, Inc., will

          4  rehabilitate the buildings to provide 26 units of

          5  low and moderate income rental housing, plus one

          6  super's unit.  Council Member Dickens has reviewed

          7  the project and indicated her support to us, and I

          8  know that Donald Notice, the Executive Director of

          9  West Harlem Group Assistance, is also here today and

         10  I believe will speak.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Terrific,

         12  well, we welcome him, and we will hear from him in a

         13  moment, but before that, Council Member Dickens.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Thank you so

         15  much, Chair Garodnick and my colleagues for the

         16  opportunity to speak in support of this important

         17  neighborhood redevelopment program project that is

         18  in my district under the leadership of Donald

         19  Notice, Stanley Gleaton and Donald Fulk (phonetic)

         20  of the West Harlem Group Assistance.

         21                 This Land Use project would sell to

         22  West Harlem three former till buildings at 121 West

         23  133rd, 168 West 121st and 268 West 134th Street for

         24  the purposes of new low income rental housing.

         25  These buildings will be gut rehabbed and remade into
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          2  new apartment buildings.

          3                 Although these buildings are formerly

          4  till buildings, they are what I term failed till

          5  buildings.  They were never converted into ownership

          6  for the existing residents.  The existing residents

          7  are desperate for quality affordable housing, and

          8  this is what the Council can do, and it is an

          9  opportunity for us to work for and on behalf of the

         10  people.

         11                 I'm very excited to see these former

         12  till buildings given new life by West Harlem, and

         13  I'm even more excited that these buildings will

         14  protect the rights of existing and future tenants. For

         15  the existing tenants of these buildings, they will

         16  be temporarily relocated to other West Harlem

         17  housing while construction is taking place.  When

         18  they return to their homes, they will be expected to

         19  pay no more than 30 percent of their income for

         20  their apartment.  No existing tenant will pay more

         21  than $635 per month for their first year, which

         22  protects the fixed incomes of many of the seniors

         23  living in the buildings.

         24                 For future tenants of the currently

         25  vacant units, these units will be rented at 60
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          2  percent of AMI.  The new apartments will be rented

          3  to those tenants at the following rates: A studio is

          4  $615 a month, one- bedroom $658 a month, two-

          5  bedrooms $763 a month and three- bedrooms $918 a

          6  month.  People who are currently on West Harlem's

          7  priority list will be favored for these vacant units

          8  with homeless people having a higher priority.

          9                 One building, 268 West 134th Street,

         10  will have two new commercial units, which will be

         11  marketed at $15 to $30 per square foot, depending on

         12  the commercial tenant, and that is very affordable

         13  at a particular time when development, or what I

         14  term overdevelopment, is occurring.  I refer to a

         15  New York Post article of August 12th that is

         16  highlighting all the development that is going on in

         17  Harlem now that is non- affordable to new

         18  businesses, as well as the indigenous businesses are

         19  forced out.  I commend West Harlem because this will

         20  allow a small business to remain in the community.

         21  This structure will make it easier for the small

         22  community- based businesses to get a lease and

         23  maintain their businesses in Harlem.

         24                 If this isn't enough, West Harlem has

         25  added one more bonus to this project that is worthy
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          2  for City Council consideration and approval,

          3  particularly my colleague, Council Member Gale

          4  Brewer.  With each refurbished rental unit, West

          5  Harlem will install one personal computer for the

          6  family moving in, and to ensure that this computer

          7  is put to full use, West Harlem has negotiated with

          8  internet providers on discounted service for the

          9  residents of these buildings.

         10                 I want to thank HPD Deputy

         11  Commissioner Carol Clark for all of her hard work

         12  and the expeditious work that she has done on all of

         13  our HPD projects, and it is for this reason that I

         14  am asking for full support for this project that is

         15  being done by West Harlem Group Assistance in my

         16  community, and I thank my Chair and my colleagues.

         17  I ask for a yes vote at this time.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  All right.

         19  Thank you, Council Member Dickens.  Strong support,

         20  and we appreciate it, and Ms. Clark, we're now going

         21  to invite Mr. Notice up to speak for himself.  We

         22  welcome you.  If you could just introduce yourself

         23  for the record, and you can go right ahead when

         24  you're ready.

         25                 MR. NOTICE:  Thank you.  My name is
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          2  Donald Notice. I'm the Executive Director for West

          3  Harlem Group Assistance, and I want to thank the

          4  Council for allowing me to testify this afternoon.

          5                 Councilwoman Inez Dickens so

          6  eloquently supported this project and said just

          7  about everything that I wanted to say. Thank you,

          8  Ms. Dickens.

          9                 The project is an important project

         10  taking formerly till buildings.  One of the things

         11  that West Harlem does, we have a social service

         12  component, so we will be working with those families

         13  on whatever social services they need.  The NRP

         14  program has a social service grant attached to it,

         15  and West Harlem has set up technology centers in

         16  order to do workforce development within those

         17  buildings.  So we will continue that spirit in these

         18  buildings and do workforce development.

         19                 It ties into the building being wired

         20  so that they can have computers and that each

         21  apartment will have a desk top computer.  We have an

         22  on staff person that will give those classes and

         23  train them.  We just finished an NRP project a

         24  couple of weeks ago, and they're delivering 30

         25  computers to my office today so that we can do that
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          2  for another NRP program.  So I want to thank the

          3  Council, and if there's any other questions that you

          4  want me to answer.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Terrific.

          6  That's a very innovative way of bringing technology

          7  to residents, and we think that's terrific.  Council

          8  Member Ignizio?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER IGNIZIO:  I just

         10  wanted to commend my colleague, Inez Dickens, for

         11  her work in bridging the digital divide here for all

         12  communities who ought have access to the internet

         13  and thereby access to greater learning.  I want to

         14  commend you for joining with the rest of the

         15  Committee in fighting for AMI fairness and AMI

         16  equity in all communities to keep people who live in

         17  their communities and want to stay in their

         18  communities to allow them to remain where they

         19  belong, which is in their home towns.  So I commend

         20  you, Councilwoman.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:   Thank you,

         22  Mr. Notice, we appreciate it.  Seeing no other

         23  members of the public wishing to testify on this

         24  item, we are going to close the hearing on Land Use

         25  No. 505, which is non- ULURP No. 2007 5582 HAM, and
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          2  we're going to move onto our next item, so we thank

          3  you very much.

          4                 MR. NOTICE:  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Our next item

          6  is Land Use No. 508 non- ULURP No. 2007 5587 HAK.

          7  It is two addresses in Brooklyn in the district of

          8  Council Member Lou Fidler as part of the Dollar

          9  Homes Program.  Ms. Clark?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  Yes,

         11  thank you, Chairman Garodnick.  I'm joined for these

         12  four items by Sal D'Avola, who's the Executive

         13  Director of Restored Homes.

         14                 LU508 consists of the proposed

         15  moderate rehabilitation of two vacant one- family

         16  homes located, as you noted, at 9017 Avenue N and

         17  1353 East 95th Street under HUD's asset control area

         18  program.

         19                 As you may recall from our previous

         20  testimony in 2006, HUD, HPD and the non- profit

         21  Restored Homes Housing Development Fund Corporation

         22  executed an agreement allowing for the creation of

         23  asset control areas in New York City.  In accordance

         24  with this agreement, HUD will sell FHA foreclosed

         25  vacant one to four- family homes in its inventory to
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          2  Restored Homes HDFC and then in collaboration with

          3  HPD, Restored Homes will oversee the rehabilitation

          4  of these buildings and the marketing process

          5  established to identify eligible purchasers.

          6                 To date, Restored Homes HDFC has

          7  purchased 22 homes from HUD and is planning to start

          8  their rehabilitation shortly. Today, HPD is before

          9  the Council seeking the Council's and this

         10  Committee's approval of a UDAAP tax exemption for

         11  the eligible purchasers to enhance the affordability

         12  of the project.  Council Member Fidler has been

         13  briefed and has indicated his support.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you.

         15  Do you have anything to add, Mr. D'Avola?

         16                 MR. D'AVOLA:  No, just that I'm here

         17  in support of the application, and if there are any

         18  questions that anyone wants to ask me, I am here to

         19  answer them.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you.

         21  If you could just give us a sense of the

         22  affordability of these homes, the tax exemption

         23  would be for the enhanced affordability.  So if you

         24  could give us a sense of what it is with or without

         25  the UDAAP.
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          2                 MR. D'AVOLA:  We haven't finalized

          3  the prices yet for the homes, but we're targeting

          4  anywhere between 100 percent of AMI and 130 percent

          5  of AMI, which is a range of $70,000 to $92,000.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  I'm sorry,

          7  just so I understand.  The enhanced affordability,

          8  is that the enhanced affordability, or is that

          9  without the enhanced affordability?

         10                 MR. D'AVOLA:  That's the sales price

         11  that we are marketing in terms of the affordability

         12  for the buyers.  That's separate and apart from the

         13  enhanced tax exemption that's being offered.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Okay, so it's

         15  an enhanced tax exemption.  There's no linkage

         16  between the tax -- okay, then I have misheard Ms.

         17  Clark.  But the issue is then you're targeting to

         18  100 to 130 percent of AMI for the sales price.  The

         19  tax exemption is just a tax exemption?

         20                 MR. D'AVOLA:  Yes, the tax exemption

         21  helps us in terms of targeting that AMI number

         22  because it helps us reduce the cost to the

         23  homeowners going forward, and it, in effect, in

         24  terms of determining the affordability of these

         25  homes, that tax exemption gets built into that
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          2  calculation.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you.

          4  Let's see.  We have no other members of the public

          5  wishing to testify on Land Use 508.  We have three

          6  more of these in this category, so why don't we just

          7  do them in turn.  We'll close the hearing on Land

          8  Use 508, which is, as previously mentioned, was Land

          9  Use non- ULURP 2007 5587 HAK.

         10                 We're opening the hearing on Land Use

         11  510, which is non- ULURP 2007 5590 HAX in the

         12  district of Council Member Joel Rivera.  Ms. Clark?

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  Right.

         14    LU510 consists of the proposed rehabilitation of

         15  two vacant two- family homes located at 2154 and

         16  2364 Cortona Avenue through the HPD and HUD

         17  initiative that we've been discussing known as the

         18  ACA program.  Council Member Rivera was briefed and

         19  indicated his support.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Same targets?

         21

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  Same

         23  targets, yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  So 100 to 130

         25  percent of AMI?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  That's

          3  correct.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you.

          5  Seeing no other members of the public wishing to

          6  testify on Land Use No. 510, non ULURP 2007 5590

          7  HAX, we'll close the hearing on that item, and open

          8  it on Land Use 511 non- ULURP No. 2007 5591 HAQ, one

          9  property in Queens in the district of Council Member

         10  Sanders.  Ms. Clark?

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  LU511

         12  consists of the proposed rehabilitation of a vacant

         13  one- family home located at 144- 44 177th Street

         14  through the HPD and HUD initiative known as the ACA

         15  program. Council Member Sanders was briefed and

         16  indicated his support.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you.

         18  Again, and for all of these, it is the same target

         19  for AMI, is that correct?

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  That's

         21  correct.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you.

         23  Seeing no other members of the public wishing to

         24  testify on Land Use No. 511 non- ULURP 2007 5591

         25  HAQ, we'll close the hearing on that item and open
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          2  the hearing on our last item of the day, Land Use

          3  No. 512 non- ULURP No. 2007 5592 HAQ, three

          4  addresses in the district of Council Member White.

          5  Ms. Clark?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  Yes.

          7  LU512 consists of the proposed rehabilitation of

          8  three vacant one- family homes located at 114- 40

          9  158th Street, 108- 05 160th Street and 132- 03 135th

         10  Street through the HPD and HUD initiative known as

         11  the HCA program.  Council Member White was briefed

         12  and indicated his support.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you,

         14  and seeing no members of the public wishing to

         15  testify on this item, Land Use 512 non- ULURP 2007

         16  5592 HAQ is now closed.  That is our last item on

         17  the agenda today, so we are going to couple together

         18  all of the items that we heard on today's agenda for

         19  the purpose of voting. We will lay over all of the

         20  rest at the request of the individual Council

         21  Members in whose districts the applications sit.

         22  The Chair recommends an aye vote on all of the items

         23  on today's calendar that we heard and we'll ask the

         24  Counsel to call the roll.

         25                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Chair
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          2  Garodnick.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Aye.

          4                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Council

          5  Member Gonzalez.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  Aye.

          7                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Council

          8  Member Dickens.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Aye.

         10                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Council

         11  Member Ignizio.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER IGNIZIO:  Aye.

         13                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  By a vote

         14  of four in the affirmative, none in the negative and

         15  no abstentions, the aforementioned items are

         16  approved and referred to the full Committee.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you

         18  very much, everyone, and we are now adjourned.

         19                 (Hearing concluded at 2:10 p.m.)
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          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, DEBORAH RICHARDS, do hereby

         10  certify that the foregoing is a true and accurate

         11  transcript of the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         16                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         17  set my hand this 20th day of August 2007.
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                                                            51

          1

          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N

          3

          4

          5

          6

          7

          8

          9            I, DEBORAH RICHARDS, do hereby certify the
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